
ABABABAB    
ENVIRONMENT CAPITAL SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

THURSDAY 8 SEPTEMBER 2011 
7.00 PM 
 

Bourges/Viersen Room - Town Hall 
 
 
 

AGENDA  

 Page No 

 
1. Apologies for Absence 

 
 

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Declarations 
 

 

 At this point Members must declare whether they have an interest, whether 
personal or prejudicial, in any of the items on the agenda. Members must also 
declare if they are subject to their party group whip in relation to any items 
under consideration. 

 

 

3. Minutes of Meeting Held on 14 July 2011 
 

1 - 6 

4. Call In of any Cabinet, Cabinet Member or Key Officer Decisions 
 

 

 The decision notice for each decision will bear the date on which it is published 
and will specify that the decision may then be implemented on the expiry of 3 
working days after the publication of the decision (not including the date of 
publication), unless a request for call-in of the decision is received from any two 
Members of a Scrutiny Committee or Scrutiny Commissions. If a request for 
call-in of a decision is received, implementation of the decision remains 
suspended for consideration by the relevant Scrutiny Committee or 
Commission. 

 

 

5. Biodiversity Strategy - Progress Report 2010/2011 
 

7 - 38 

6. Environment Capital Performance Update 
 

39 - 42 

7. Forward Plan of Key Decisions 
 

43 - 56 

8. Work Programme 
 

57 - 60 

9. Date of Next Meeting 
 

 

 Thursday, 3 November 2011 
 

 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact 
Paulina Ford on 01733 452508 as soon as possible. 
 

 
 
 

Committee Members: 
 

Councillors: D Day (Chairman), N Arculus (Vice Chairman), N North, B Rush, J Peach, J A Fox 
and N Sandford 

 
Substitutes: Councillors: F Benton, C Ash and A Shaheed 

 
Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Paulina Ford on telephone 01733 
452508 or by email – paulina.ford@peterborough.gov.uk 

 
Emergency Evacuation Procedure – Outside Normal Office Hours 
 
In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building by way of the nearest escape 
route and proceed directly to the assembly point in front of the Cathedral.  The duty Beadle will assume 
overall control during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the Beadle is unavailable, this 
responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair. 

 



 

ABABABAB    
 
MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE ENVIRONMENT CAPITAL SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

HELD AT THE BOURGES/VIERSEN ROOM - TOWN HALL 
 ON 14 JULY 2011 

 
Present: Councillors D Day (Chairman), N Arculus, N North, J Peach, B Rush, 

J A Fox and N Sandford 
 

Also Present: Councillor JR Fox, Representing the Leader of the Peterborough 
Independent Forum 
Councillor Sam Dalton, Cabinet Member for Environment 
Hannah Reid, Youth Council Representative 
 

Officers Present: Teresa Wood, Sustainable Environment Manager 
Trevor Gibson, Director of Environment Capital 
Richard Pearn, Programme Manager - Waste Infrastructure  
Claire Boyd, Lawyer  
Paulina Ford, Senior Governance Officer, Scrutiny 

 
1. Apologies for Absence  

 
No apologies for absence were received.   
 

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Declarations  
 
Declarations of interest were received from Councillor JR Fox and Councillor Sandford in 
relation to item 6 on the agenda - Environment Capital: Progress Update.  Councillor Fox 
declared that he was employed by the Peterborough Council of Voluntary Services as a co-
ordinator of Shop Mobility.  Councillor Sandford declared that he was a Director on the Board 
of the Peterborough Environment City Trust and worked for the Woodland Trust as an 
employee.  He also declared that he had Solar Panels fitted on his own property and 
received a Feed-In Tariff. 
 

3. Minutes of the Meeting held on 9 June 2011  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 9 June 2011 were approved as a correct record. 
 

4. Call In of any Cabinet, Cabinet Member or Key Officer Decisions  
 
There were no requests for call-in to consider. 
 

5. Members Waste and Recycling Task and Finish Group 
 
The report informed the Committee of the proposal to disband the Members Waste and 
Recycling Task and Finish Group which had been formed in January 2003 under the former 
Leader of the Council and was then repositioned as a sub working group of the Environment 
Capital Scrutiny Committee in April 2009.   After considering the proposal the Committee 
sought assurance from Officers that if the Task and Finish Group were to be disbanded that 
all important items relating to Waste 2020 would be brought before this Committee.  Officers 
gave assurance that this would happen.   
 
 
 
 

1



 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Committee recommends that the Members Waste and Recycling Task and Finish Group 
be disbanded immediately and that all future monitoring of Waste 2020 be dealt with directly 
through the Environment Capital Scrutiny Committee reporting process.   
          

6. Environment Capital:  Progress Report 
 
The report provided information on progress in delivering the “Home of Environment Capital” 
initiative.  The Director of Environment Capital confirmed that the “Home of Environment 
Capital” Major Policy had been approved by Council in 2010 and was now being used across 
the authority.  Members were informed that a report would be brought to the next meeting of 
the Committee on the performance of the City in comparison to other cities. The assessment 
for this had been based on the Forum for the Future Sustainable Cities Index.  A full report 
on the progress of the Carbon Reduction Commitment (CRC) would be presented to the 
Committee in March 2012.   
 
Questions and observations were raised around the following areas: 
 

• Members were concerned that the increase in rejection of wind farms would affect the 
renewable energy policy.  The objections were usually about visual quality and these 
would have to be taken into account but if the right sites were chosen then it would not 
have a major effect. 

• Is it possible to put Photo-voltaic panels on the Lido building?  In the process of setting 
up an Energy Services Company and as part of that process a full buildings assessment 
would be carried out.  The Lido had not been identified but it would be added to the list. 

• Waste to energy plant.  Would it be possible to have a pipe to carry steam to the 
Regional Pool and Lido for heating?   The facility would be combined heat and power 
enabled and a requirement would be to extract heat.  This would mean that heat could be 
moved to adjacent industrial or commercial buildings like the Regional Pool.  However it 
would take additional investment to lay the pipes and would therefore take a while to 
implement. 

• In the report it was mentioned that PCC had completed and submitted a bid totalling 
£4,999,990 to the Department for Transport which included sustainable transport 
improvements and aimed at increasingly integrating sustainable travel into mainstream 
travel planning.  It covered four key packages:  

 
1. Working with individuals, communities and neighbourhoods 
2. Workplace travel planning 
3. Healthier travel 
4. Young peoples travel 
 

     How do you propose to publicise these initiatives.  The Sustainable Environment Manager 
informed the Committee that the bid had been successful for the full amount of 
£4,999,990.   The bid detailed the initiatives under each package and included projects 
with local businesses, schools, Primary Care Trust and large infrastructure projects such 
as looking at the cycle infrastructure around the station.  A full copy of the bid could be 
provided to Members. 
 
Members congratulated officers on their hard work in successfully receiving the full 
amount of the bid. 
 

• The Cabinet Member for Environment informed Members that Peterborough City Council 
had just launched a cycle to work scheme where employees were offered the chance to 
buy a bike through work and claim the tax back. 

2



 

• Could some of the bid money be used for Bluetooth communications for people who are 
partially sighted?  The bid does include looking at technology solutions and the 
Sustainable Environment Manager welcomed suggestions for further investigation. 

• Members wanted further clarification on the tangible benefits of The Peterborough Model 
and how adaptable it was and what it delivered.  Members were informed that The 
Peterborough Model used Google Earth for its base and it provided a clearer way of 
translating data that would normally be presented on spreadsheets. The type of data 
provided would be information on energy use, water use and flood plains.   The 
information was turned into a graphic 3D image.  The benefits will mean that a public 
website will be launched in a few weeks showing the City’s environmental performance.  

• The Cabinet Member for Environment informed members that the Peterborough Model 
would ideally be used for decision making to benefit the city and a future modelling 
device.  It would also be a useful educational tool for schools and colleges. 

• Does the authority get any royalties from the The Peterborough Model if used by other 
authorities?  No royalties would be received but it will be published and sold as the 
Peterborough Model. 

• Does the authority have a strategy for promoting solar energy and renewables?   
Members were informed that there was no dedicated policy for renewables in place.  In 
the current economic climate if housing developers were expected to build to a code 6 
sustainably rating which was a zero carbon home then it would make the housing 
developments completely unviable.   A guidance document for developers was currently 
being produced on what the authority would like to achieve as an Environment City. 
When the housing market picked up this would go to Full Council to become policy. The 
Home of Environment Capital Policy did state the following within its policy:  

o We will seek to minimise the use of energy and will ensure that, where energy is 
used, it will be done so effectively and efficiently. 

o We will seek to minimise waste of energy, and will ensure that, where energy is 
used, the greatest possible proportion becomes useful heat, light or power. We 
will use environmentally safe and, where practicable, sustainable energy sources 
and will invest in, demonstrate and promote, the benefits of energy efficiency.  

• Council Landlords could improve the use of Photo-voltaic panels if there was a 
Green Leasing Policy in place.  There is currently no incentive to put them on 
properties as under tenancy agreements properties have to be returned to their 
existing state when occupants leave.  Has the Council looked into this?   
Members were informed that officers had been asked to investigate this.  The 
Director of Environment Capital also advised Members that systematically every 
council property was being looked at and assessed to see how much electricity 
could be generated from their roofs and prioritised for its capability to produce 
electricity. 

• Can we ring fence the money that is saved by using solar panels and reinvest it into wind 
farms and further Photo-voltaic panels.  The savings that were made would be invested 
into further green projects.  There was some money in the Salix Fund which provided 
interest free funding to accelerate investment in energy efficiency technologies.  Savings 
made through these investments went back into the fund for further investment.  
Members were invited to put ideas forward for green projects. 

• Can you guarantee that the public transport budget will remain the same in the next 
financial year?  The bus subsidy budget had been set and no cuts were planned. 

• Can you evidence that there has been a 9% reduction in traffic.  This information came 
from the Travelchoice data. In 2004 and 2005, at the beginning of Travel Choice, surveys 
were completed on a group of people who kept a diary of their travel behaviour.  The 
same group were resurveyed in 2008 and it demonstrated an increase in bus usage, 
walking and cycling equating to a relative reduction in car use of 9% across the targeted 
group of people.  Of late there is also evidence of more people cycling from the data 
gathered through the cycle counters placed across the city.  In addition, traffic flow data 
shows no significant increase in car use. 

3



 

• 1000 trees had been cut down during the building of the hospital and it was promised that 
these would be replaced.  Approximately 300 trees have been replaced but many of them 
have died.  Can you ensure that the trees would be replaced and that the ones that had 
died would also be replaced?  The Cabinet Member for Environment assured Members 
that the trees would be replaced.  Approximately 800 trees had been replaced so far and 
was unaware that many had died.   This would be looked into.  As part of the Enterprise 
Contract there was a full survey of all the trees in the city being completed. 

• The Committee are still waiting for a response to the Friends of the Earth questions with 
regard to costings on the Waste 2020 facility.  When can we expect to receive a report in 
response to the questions?   Officers advised that they were still waiting to hear from 
Friends of the Earth with regard to clarification on some of the questions.  Members 
requested that a report be brought to the Committee as soon as possible. 

• Can you explain the item in the report which states that there will be a project to expand 
the Shopmobilty scheme to local centres and provide charging points for scooters?  The 
ConAge bid was a bid to the European Commission to provide funding to improve and 
increase the use of sustainable travel to people over 50.  More detail with particular 
reference to the Shopmobility scheme would be provided by the officer leading on the 
project. 

 
ACTION AGREED 
 
The Committee agreed that: 
 
I. A full report on the progress of the Carbon Reduction Commitment (CRC) would be 

presented to the Committee in March 2012.   
II. A full copy of the Local Sustainable Transport Fund bid would be provided to Members. 

III. The Cabinet Member for Environment would look into the replacement of dead trees at 
the new hospital site. 

IV. A report be brought to the Committee on the costs of the Waste 2020 facility in answer to 
the Friends of the Earth questions. 

V. Further detail to be provided to Members on the expansion of the Shopmobilty scheme to 
local centres and provision of charging points for scooters. 

VI. Officers to provide a demonstration to the Committee on The Peterborough Model at a 
future meeting. 

 
  7. Environment Capital: Introduction, Overview and Work Programme 
 

The report presented the Committee with an overview of the issues, opportunities, priorities 
and challenges in connection with the Environment Capital theme.  The Committee were 
asked to identify areas of work to be included in their work programme for the coming year.  
The report listed the Environment Capital Key Deliverables which were Environmental 
Businesses, Sustainable Transport, Conserving Natural Resources and Cleaner and 
Greener. 
 
Members discussed the report and agreed that they should look at the area of conserving 
natural resources as the main theme of work over the coming year. 
 
ACTION AGREED 
 
That the Committee looks at the theme of conserving natural resources for the work 
programme for 2011/2012.  This to include: 
 

• Consideration of a policy on renewable energy 

• Street Lighting Capital Project 

• Green Deal Initiative 
 
 

4



 

8.     Forward Plan of Key Decisions 
 
The latest version of the Forward Plan, showing details of the key decisions that the Leader 
of the Council believed the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members would be making over the 
next four months, was received. 
 
ACTION AGREED 
 
The Committee noted the Forward Plan and agreed that there were no items for further 
consideration. 
 

9.    Work Programme 
 
Members considered the Committee’s Work Programme for 2010/11 and discussed possible 
items for inclusion. 
 
ACTION AGREED 

 
To confirm the work programme for 2010/11 and the Scrutiny Officer to include any 
additional items as requested during the meeting. 
 

10. Date of the Next Meeting 
 
 8 September 2011 

 
 

 
  

 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 
7.00 - 9.05pm 

5



6

This page is intentionally left blank



 

ENVIRONMENT CAPITAL SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 
 

Agenda Item No. 5 
 

8 SEPTEMBER 2011 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Executive Director - Operations                                         
 
Report Author  –  James Fisher, Wildlife Officer 
Contact Details  –  01733 453543 
 

CITY COUNCIL’S BIODIVERSITY STRATEGY: PROGRESS REPORT 2010/11  
 
1. PURPOSE 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to: 
 

a) Provide information with respect to progress against the actions and targets contained in the 
PCC Biodiversity Strategy (2010). 

 
b) Allow feedback to be given by the Committee with respect to progress against the existing 

strategy.   
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 The Committee is asked to consider the progress made against the City Councils 2010 

Biodiversity Strategy and to make any recommendations with regards to the future 
implementation of the Strategy. 

 
3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY 
  
3.1 The 2010 strategy contributes to the Sustainable Community Strategy and LAA via the LAA 

Biodiversity target which is based on National Indicator 197 (improved local biodiversity), now 
replaced by National Indicator 160. It is more generally linked to the Community Strategy and 
National Indicators via the Cleaner/Greener agenda and sections of these documents. It has 
been agreed with the Greater Peterborough Partnership that reporting against the PCC 
Biodiversity Strategy will be used, along with other reporting, to give a more detailed picture of 
the breadth of the actions taking place for biodiversity under the LAA Biodiversity target.  

 
4. BACKGROUND 
 
4.1 This report is submitted to the Committee by the PCC Biodiversity Officer Working Group as a 

progress report for 2010/11 against the existing PCC Biodiversity Strategy. The Strategy was 
agreed in 2010 with a requirement for annual reporting on progress against the specific actions 
and targets of the strategy.  

 
4.2 This progress report is against the 2010 PCC Biodiversity Strategy.  
  
5. KEY ISSUES 
 
5.1  The key issues which the Committee need to consider are laid out in the appendices. All 

progress on required actions since the 2009/10 progress report have been achieved from within 
the Council’s existing budgets. Future ability to progress against the 2010 strategy will be 
dependent on some changes to land management and maintaining existing resources where 
possible.  

 

6. IMPLICATIONS 

7



 

 
6.1 The 2010 Biodiversity report included consideration of cost and resource implications. It was 

made clear that the actions set out in the 2010 report would have to be achieved within existing 
resources and that it was envisaged that biodiversity gain could be made through adjusting rather 
than completely changing current practices. The adoption of the vision statement by Full Council 
strongly reinforced this. 

 
7. CONSULTATION 
 
7.1  Consultation and discussion has been undertaken with the Executive Director of Operations and 

the City Council’s Biodiversity Officer Working Group. 
 
8. NEXT STEPS 
 
8.1 Feedback from the Committee will be used to inform the future focus of the PCC Biodiversity 

Officer Working Group.  
 
9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
 

• Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006 (Section 40). 

• Guidance for Local Authorities on Implementing the Biodiversity Duty, Defra, May 2007. 

• Peterborough City Council Approach to Biodiversity submitted to the Environment Capital 
Scrutiny Committee in 2010. 

• Peterborough Sustainable Community Strategy (including Rural Vision Strategy and 
Environment Capital manifesto). 

 
10. APPENDICES 
 
10.1 Appendix A: Report of progress against actions and targets of Peterborough City Councils 

Biodiversity Strategy  
 
10.2 Appendix B: Full reports from the members of the Biodiversity Officer Working Group 

8



 

Appendix A: Report of progress against actions and targets of Peterborough City Councils Biodiversity Strategy  
 

 Key Recommendations and 
Action Points from the 
biodiversity strategy  

Update on Progress/Action underway Barrier to Progress Future Action 

1 All City Council and contract staff 
directly involved in the management 
of open space should be given 
training and guidance on good 
management practice to safeguard 
and promote Biodiversity.  

This should include the identification 
of ‘model’ sites to demonstrate best 
practice. 
 
 

The Natural and Historic Environment 
Team has continued general liaison and 
advice to officers and departments from 
across the City Council with respect to 
Biodiversity. In addition to those 
specifically represented on the 
Biodiversity Officer Working Group these 
also for example include highways and 
rights of way officers.  

N/A 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

Continue this role. 

2 Where PCC owned or managed land 
forms part of a wildlife corridor its 
management will aim to facilitate its 
role as a part of the ecological 
network it is part of. 
 

An extension to management has now 
been successfully employed on 
Stamford etc road verge County Wildlife 
Site, Ailsworth which links with Ailsworth 
Marsh and Green Lane CWS. 
 
In addition, some financial resources 
have now been allocated towards 
extensions to the four other Road Verge 
CWS recommended in the Biodiversity 
Strategy (at Wittering, Helpston, Upton & 
Southorpe). Work is currently being 
undertaken to negotiate these into the 
new Enterprise contract. 
 

N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
N/A Discussions on-going with 
Enterprise. 

Continue this situation 
 
 
 
 
 
Continue to progress 
negotiations with Enterprise.  

3 Secure funding for enhancement 
works and SSSI specific 
management for the PCC owned 
part of the Orton Pit SSSI.  

 

This is the only PCC owned SSSI and 
consists of part of the treebelt which 
runs along the southern edge of the 
Fletton Parkway. A woodland grant 
scheme could be sought to cover a 
significant proportion of SSSI specific 

Limited resources existed within 
City Services to develop such a 
bid. However the newly formed 
Enterprise contract should now 
be able to progress this work. 
The grant application could form 

Enterprise to agree timetable 
with PCC for developing a 
Woodland Grant Scheme bid. 

9



 

 Key Recommendations and 
Action Points from the 
biodiversity strategy  

Update on Progress/Action underway Barrier to Progress Future Action 

works within the Treebelt, however this 
has yet to be applied for.  
 

part of wider scheme covering 
majority of PCC-owned 
woodlands.  

4/ 
5 

All PCC County Wildlife Sites to be 
positive management to conserve 
and where possible enhance the site 
for the criteria for which they are 
designated CWS. 

The re-surveying of all wildlife sites has 
continued during the reporting period 
which is in part covered under a service 
level agreement between the Wildlife 
Trust and the City Council.  
 
Eye Green Gravel Pit: The existing 
management by the Wildlife Trust on 
behalf on the City Council continues to 
ensure this site remains in positive 
management.  
 
The Boardwalks: Existing management 
has been maintained however external 
funding for restoration and habitat 
creation works as well as works to paths 
and signage has yet to be sought. It is 
anticipated that in the longer term a 
similar arrangement with the Wildlife 
Trust could be achieved as at Eye 
Green.  
 
Debdale pond: Existing management 
has been maintained during reporting 
period.  
 
Broadway Cemetery: Existing 
management has been maintained 
during reporting period. 
 
Eastfield Cemetery: Wildlife Site status 

N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
Funding bid will be required to be 
made by Enterprise therefore 
staff resources will need to be 
allocated to deliver this. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
N/A 

Continued budget allocations for 
SLA with Wildlife Trust essential.  
 
 
 
 
Continue this situation. 
 
 
 
 
 
Enterprise to agree timetable 
with PCC for developing funding 
bid. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Continue this situation. 
 
 
 
Continue this situation. 
 
 
 
Carry out re-survey to confirm 

1
0



 

 Key Recommendations and 
Action Points from the 
biodiversity strategy  

Update on Progress/Action underway Barrier to Progress Future Action 

is currently incompatible with the 
ongoing burials at this site. Works with 
respect to the wildlife site are therefore 
not compatible with the sites primary 
function. It is therefore likely to be de-
designated following a final resurvey.  
 
City managed ancient woodland 
(Pocock's Wood, Grimeshaw Wood, 
Highlees Spinney, Spencer’s Hurn & 
Water Spinney): Minimal works carried 
out during reporting period due to lack of 
financial resources available.  
External HLF funding bid currently being 
developed by PECT in partnership with 
PCC/ Enterprise to address lack of 
management. 
 
Holywell Fish Ponds: Existing 
management has been maintained 
during reporting period. 
 
PCC managed County Wildlife Site 
Road Verges (Southey Lodge verge; 
Stamford Rd./Heath Rd./ Ailsworth 
Rd./King St. verges; Barnack road 
verges & Bedford Purlieus-Wittering 
road verge): Existing management has 
been maintained involving a cut at the 
end of the growing season (late 
September depending on weather 
conditions) and removal of cuttings.   
 
An additional cut at the start of the 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
In addition to HLF bid, it is 
considered that in order to 
achieve management required as 
outlined in Ancient Woodland 
Report, EWGS funding 
application will need to be made 
by Enterprise, therefore staffing 
resources will need to be 
allocated to deliver this.   
 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N/A Discussions on-going with 

whether de-designation required. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Enterprise to agree timetable 
with PCC for developing EWGS 
application. 
Enterprise/ PCC to continue to 
work with PECT to develop larger 
funding bid for woodland 
restoration/ updated 
management plan. 
 
 
 
Continue this situation. 
 
 
 
Continue this situation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Continue to progress 

1
1



 

 Key Recommendations and 
Action Points from the 
biodiversity strategy  

Update on Progress/Action underway Barrier to Progress Future Action 

growing season to reduce standing 
grass growth has not yet been 
implemented. However some financial 
resources have now been allocated to 
this task.  
 
Onsite signing of CWS road verges to 
assist PCC staff, contractors and utilities 
companies continues to be implemented 
with the addition of 23 new signposts 
having recently been installed within 
Barnack ward. 
 
Following its recent designation as a 
County Wildlife Site, 1400 metres of 
verge at the south end of Highfield Road 
(700m of road length) has been added 
to the County Wildlife Site management 
specification for road verges.  
 

Enterprise. 
 
 
 
 
 
N/A On-going work 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N/A 

negotiations with Enterprise. 
 
 
 
 
 
Continue to progress installation 
of new signs. 
 
 
 
 
 
Continue this situation. 

6 Employ best practice procedures to 
deal with invasive non-native species 
on sites of wildlife importance; or 
where these are on land in the 
authorities control and threaten 
habitats and species of importance 
or the coherence of habitat networks.  
 
Otherwise the occurrence of invasive 
non-native weed species should be 
reported by PCC officers where this 
is observed as a result of carrying 
out their normal duties.  

The Boardwalks LNR is the only relevant 
known site containing Orange Balsam 
and Japanese Knotweed.  
 
Initial treatment of Knotweed appears to 
have been relatively successful, 
however follow-up treatments are likely 
to be necessary to effectively eradicate 
this species from the LNR.  
 
Effective control of Orange Balsam is 
currently being achieved by 
Peterborough Conservation Volunteers 
on behalf of PCC.  

 
 
 
 
Continued commitment from 
Enterprise required to eradicate 
Knotweed from Boardwalks LNR. 
 
 
 
N/A effective control currently 
taking place. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Follow-up treatments will be 
required during 2012 with 
subsequent on-going monitoring. 
 
 
 
Continued financial support of 
PCV’s essential. 
 
 

1
2



 

 Key Recommendations and 
Action Points from the 
biodiversity strategy  

Update on Progress/Action underway Barrier to Progress Future Action 

 
New Zealand Pigmyweed (Crassula 
helmsii) has been recorded at Botolph 
Green Pond. An effective treatment of 
the crassula has been carried out by 
Enterprise and now the local community 
action group with support from PCC and 
the Wildlife Trust are developing a 
management plan for the area. 
 

 
N/A crassula being effectively 
treated. 

 
Continued support of local group 
and assistance with monitoring of 
pond plants. 

7 Planning related departments of the 
City Council to continue to work with 
internal advisers, conservation 
bodies and local groups with respect 
to the production of the Local 
Development Framework and also 
specific development proposals. 

The Natural and Built Environment team 
continue to provide specific advice to 
both Development Control officers with 
regard to specific development 
proposals and to Planning Policy 
colleagues in relation to the LDF 
including policies and site allocation 
documents. 
 
PCC in partnership with the 
Environmental Records Centre is 
keeping the key environmental 
characteristics of the Authority area 
under review in order to be able to 
progress the LDF and has also 
produced the annual monitoring report 
on the LDF.  
 
The monitoring of barn owls to the East 
of Peterborough has proved important 
(cost £2395 PA) in the authorities ability 
to consider major road and wind farm 
applications.  
 

N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
 
 

Continue current efforts. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Support for the ERC is on-going. 
Continued budget allocations 
essential.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Continued budget allocations for 
barn owl project essential.  
 
 
 
 

1
3



 

 Key Recommendations and 
Action Points from the 
biodiversity strategy  

Update on Progress/Action underway Barrier to Progress Future Action 

County Wildlife Site monitoring has also 
had a key role to play in the ability of the 
authority to comply with these 
requirements.  
 

N/A Continued budget allocations for 
Wildlife Trust SLA essential.  
 

8 In the short-term reasonably 
significant areas should be identified 
for trialling new approaches to 
landscape management.  

A number of trials have been carried out 
and/or continue. These include.  
 

• Sunningdale trial woodland coppice 
area. 

• Crematorium Wildflower area. 

• Central Park Wildflower strip. 

• Dogsthorpe and Olive Road 
allotment Initiatives  

 

This will become clear as 
management of trial areas 
progress. 
 

The trial areas approach 
continues and positive/ negative 
aspects of management 
investigated. Dependent upon 
this, expansion of management 
for biodiversity within a site or to 
another similar site can then be 
given informed and realistic 
consideration.  
 

9 Biodiversity should be incorporated 
into all landscape management 
contracts. 
 

Biodiversity already features in a 
number of landscape management 
contracts; these include the mowing 
regimes of protected road verges and 
management of areas such as the 
Bluebell community area and Broadway 
cemetery. 
 
The production of biodiversity 
specifications for consideration at 
contract renewal continues to be 
investigated. The need to work within 
existing resources is however an over-
riding factor. 
 
 
 
A specification with respect to working 
on watercourses with water voles was 

N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cost element of this has been 
identified as key. Has to work 
within existing resources. Pursuit 
of external funding for this area 
unlikely to be successful.  
 
 
 
 
N/A 
 

Support of these efforts 
continues. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ways in which further biodiversity 
can be incorporated at no 
additional cost continue to be 
sought.  
 
 
 
 
 
N/A 
 

1
4



 

 Key Recommendations and 
Action Points from the 
biodiversity strategy  

Update on Progress/Action underway Barrier to Progress Future Action 

incorporated into the Drainage ditch 
management contract when it was 
renewed. 
 
Woodland and shelterbelt management 
is undertaken in a manner to sustain and 
enhance biodiversity. 
 
A specification with respect to the 
implementation of hedge, shrub and tree 
works in the bird nesting season was 
developed as part of the update of the 
biodiversity strategy. Key feedback from 
RSPB and Natural England was secured 
for this specification.  
 

 
 
 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
Concerns with respect of cost of 
implementation from Corporate 
Management Team.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
N/A.  
 
 
 
The Environment Capital 
Scrutiny Committee has referred 
this to Peterborough City 
Services (now Enterprise) to 
progress this independently of 
the Biodiversity Strategy. Support 
will be provided from the City 
Councils Officer Working Group 
for Biodiversity as required.    

10 Production of management plans for 
open spaces as has been done for 
Central Park. In this context, where 
appropriate, incorporate differential 
grass cutting regimes in parks, 
verges and large open spaces. 

This is under investigation by the Officer 
group much information with respect to 
site management is already held.  
 
It will need to be linked to the trial areas 
discussed above. Plans would need to 
be written sequentially by the relevant 
officer to that site. It would not be 
possible to write management plans for 
all sites concurrently due to the 
magnitude of this task. 
 
The City Councils ancient woodland has 
been surveyed and widespread 
consultation undertaken. A management 
plan that will secure these valuable 
assets for decades to come has been 

Linked to trial areas  
 
 
 
The production of management 
plans is potentially a very time 
consuming process.  
 
 
 
 
 
Any changes to management will 
need to be achieved within 
existing resources.  
 
 

Trial areas approach continues. 
 
 
 
Progress sequentially. 
Investigate sources of external 
funding.  
 
 
 
 
 
Ways in which management 
could be amended at no 
additional cost continue to be 
sought/ investigated.  
 

1
5



 

 Key Recommendations and 
Action Points from the 
biodiversity strategy  

Update on Progress/Action underway Barrier to Progress Future Action 

produced.  
Investigations underway with 
Bereavement Services with respect to 
Pococks wood and brining this into 
favourable management for 
conservation and public access.  
 
Part of the works sponsored by Froglife 
at the Boardwalks Local Nature Reserve 
has included the production of a 
management specification for the site, 
works at the site for example by 
Peterborough Conservation Volunteers 
have proceeded in accordance with this 
plan.  
 
A biodiversity assessment of Central 
Park has been produced in support of its 
green flag status.  
 
The Bereavement Services Team 
produced a management plan for the 
memorial gardens which led, at the first 
attempt, to the award of the Green Flag 
in 2009. Development of the 
management plan resulted in the award 
of a further Green Flag in 2010. 
 

 
Implementation of the plan is 
reliant on existing resources and 
accessing external funding. 
 
 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
N/A 

 
Potential sources of external 
funding are identified in the plan 
that has been produced.  
 
 
 
Continue management in 
accordance with specification.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
Maintain this status. 

11 The loss of trees, hedges and shrubs 
will be resisted unless there are 
sound horticultural or other reasons 
to indicate otherwise e.g. disease, 
structural damage or the shrubs are 
due for replacement. 

This approach will be specified within 
the new Trees and Woodland strategy 
currently being finalised and will be 
applied by Enterprise. 
 
In addition the Natural and Historic 

N/A 
 
 
 
 
N/A 

Continue current efforts. 
 
 
 
 
Continue current efforts. 

1
6



 

 Key Recommendations and 
Action Points from the 
biodiversity strategy  

Update on Progress/Action underway Barrier to Progress Future Action 

Environment team continue to provide 
this advice in relation to privately owned 
hedges and shrubs. 

12 Where it is appropriate consideration 
will be made for the gradual 
replacement of non-native species 
with native species. 
 

This has been investigated by the 
Officer Group; the appropriate and 
gradual nature of this action is viewed as 
being key. For example non-native 
shrubs could only be replaced once they 
have reached the end of their lifespan. 
There would be a significant cost 
element to undertaking this in advance 
of such a time.  
 
Planting opportunities in the shelter belts 
have all been filled with native, and 
wherever possible locally sourced 
plants. 

Cost of early replacement. 
 
Limited budgets are available for 
this item.  
 

Continue current efforts. 

13 Give explicit support for small-scale 
community wildlife schemes, 
including encouraging community 
management of existing landscaping 
where requested and appropriate.   

 

PCC Natural Environment Project grants 
have continued.  Up to 15 community 
wildlife schemes are supported each 
year.  
 
Support for community projects has 
continued, as has support for projects 
such as Broadway Cemetery and 
Cuckoos Hollow groups.  
 
Peterborough Conservation Volunteers 
continue to undertake conservation 
tasks for Recreation Services on PCC 
sites and County Wildlife Sites with 
support from the Natural and Historic 
Environment Team. These have 
included works at the Boardwalks Local 

This has been successful in the 
reporting period; funding for the 
next reporting period has been 
allocated at the same level. 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dependant on continued 
allocation of budgets.  
 
 
 
Continue to support these efforts. 
 
 
 
Maintain budget allocations and 
continue to support these efforts. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1
7



 

 Key Recommendations and 
Action Points from the 
biodiversity strategy  

Update on Progress/Action underway Barrier to Progress Future Action 

Nature Reserve as well as Debdale, 
Basil Green ponds Barnack grassland 
and Ermine Street County Wildlife Sites.  
 
The probation services also undertake 
works on semi natural areas and Nature 
Reserves. 

 
 
 
 
N/A 
 
 

 
 
 
Support to this group to continue.   

14 Recognise the role of allotments and 
cemeteries in promoting Biodiversity.   
 

This approach has been trialled at the 
Dogsthorpe allotments site. For example 
young offenders have undertaken a 
pond creation scheme with the Froglife 
group. This is contributing to both of the 
parts of this action point. 
 
Where allotment sites are not utilised 
this is very difficult to achieve. 
 
 
 
 
 
The Allotments Officer has produced a 
wildlife leaflet for allotment holders.  
 
Meetings with allotments committees 
have been undertaken to discuss how 
the biodiversity of allotments can be 
increased and the possibility of using 
Natural Environment Grant funding to 
facilitate this. This grant has for example 
paid for hedging materials which have 
been planted at an allotment site by the 
users in the reporting period.  
 

N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Limited resourcing to bring 
disused plot back into active use. 
 
 
 
 
 
N/A 
 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This project is continuing to be 
supported.  
 
 
 
 
 
Recreation services have actively 
promoted allotments and 
allotment tenancies are 
continuing to increase as plots 
are cleared and brought into 
active use to meet the demand.  
 
Continue existing management 
and projects.  
 
Continue current efforts and 
Natural Environment Project 
grant funding.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1
8



 

 Key Recommendations and 
Action Points from the 
biodiversity strategy  

Update on Progress/Action underway Barrier to Progress Future Action 

In conjunction with sponsorship from 
Frog Life and utilising available 
sponsorship the tenants to various sites 
have constructed ponds to encourage 
amphibians.   
 
The wildlife value of cemeteries is well 
recognised. A wild garden of 
remembrance has been created at the 
crematorium and the Friends of 
Broadway Cemetery Group continue to 
appreciate the wildlife value of this site.  
 
A great deal of work to control bramble 
and scrub at the Broadway Cemetery 
Site has continued in the last reporting 
period.  
 
 
The wildflower area at the Crematorium 
continues to develop with self 
propagation supported by careful 
planting of native species. As with 
Eastfield Cemetery, the balance 
between the demands of the bereaved 
and supporting biodiversity needs 
sensitive management. 
 
The Children’s Memorial Garden at the 
Crematorium is maturing well with a 
good mix of indigenous planting 
supporting a range of butterflies, bees 
and other insects. The woodland pond 
has naturalised well and sports its own 

N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Antisocial usage of this site 
continues to be a concern. 
 
 
 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
 
 

Continue these efforts. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The efforts of Bereavement 
Services, supported by Officers 
from other relevant departments 
and bodies are ongoing. 
 
 
Continue these efforts. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Continue these efforts. 
 
 
 
 
 

1
9



 

 Key Recommendations and 
Action Points from the 
biodiversity strategy  

Update on Progress/Action underway Barrier to Progress Future Action 

flora and fauna. 
   
Work is currently underway to develop a 
management plan for Pococks Wood 
and to identify sources of funding, with 
the aim of re-opening the woodland to 
visitors. 
 

 
 
N/A 

 
 
Continue these efforts. 
 

15 Support initiatives to encourage 
wildlife friendly gardening, 
recognising the increasing amount of 
land devoted to this usage. 

 
 

Wildlife Gardening has been a strand of 
the Peterborough in Bloom competition 
since 2006.  
 
 
 
School wildlife projects have also been 
supported via the Natural Environment 
Projects Grants Scheme administrated 
by the Natural Environment Team and 
also the eco schools initiative. In the 
reporting period this has for example 
included the planting of school orchards, 
restoration, creation and enhancement 
of school ponds and wildlife areas.  
 
58 PCC schools have either registered, 
participated, or are currently working 
towards an eco-school award (see 
below). Others are actively involved in 
similar schemes or have developed their 
own action plans; PECT have their own 
education officer who assists schools 
with the scheme.  Many of these schools 
also have school gardens and wildlife 
spaces.  

N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
None in the reporting period, 
possible concern with respect to 
budget allocations.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N/A 

Support of urban wildlife 
initiatives is continuing both 
directly and also indirectly such 
as those with other organisations 
as Froglife and the Wildlife Trust.  
 
Continue these efforts. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Continue these efforts. 
 

2
0



 

 Key Recommendations and 
Action Points from the 
biodiversity strategy  

Update on Progress/Action underway Barrier to Progress Future Action 

 

16 With partners investigate the re-
instatement of a Peterborough 
Wildlife Group or Wildlife forum.  

No further action has taken place 
regarding the setting up of a city-wide 
Wildlife Group, however the Natural 
Environment Team continue to support 
and encourage local community wildlife 
groups, for example at Cuckoo’s Hollow 
nature reserve. 

Delay in re-recruitment of Wildlife 
Officer has slowed progress, 
however it is anticipated this can 
now continue to be pursued.  

Wildlife Officer to progress. 

17 Establish measurable annual targets 
for the creation of new areas of 
wildlife interest.  
 

The Biodiversity Partnership continues 
to review and update the local 
Biodiversity Action Plan targets for 
specific habitats and species for 
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough.  
 
The Natural Networks partnership is 
investigating how the targets from the 
Green Grid Strategy, Cambridgeshire 
and Peterborough Biodiversity Action 
Plan and Peterborough Environment 
Audit can be brought together as one set 
of targets for Peterborough. If this were 
achieved it may be possible to further 
extract a set of targets for the City 
Council.  
 
PCC continues to work in partnership 
and support PECT in developing the 
Forest for Peterborough concept. The 
F4P draft Business Plan sets out 
specific targets for tree planting and 
woodland creation in the city and PCC 
continues to seek opportunities for new 
tree planting as well as monitoring the 
number of trees planted on its own land.    

N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
NNP currently under-resourced to 
progress this further. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N/A 

Support for the BP is on-going. 
Continued budget allocations 
essential. 
 
 
 
Consider utilising Skills for Future 
post to progress action during 
2012. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Continue to report back to PECT 
re numbers of trees planted. 

2
1



 

 Key Recommendations and 
Action Points from the 
biodiversity strategy  

Update on Progress/Action underway Barrier to Progress Future Action 

 

18 Continue to support the 
Environmental Records Centre for 
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough.   
  

 
 

The centre, which is currently hosted by 
the Wildlife Trust and based in 
Cambourne, continues to receive 
support from PCC and other authorities 
and organisations in Cambridgeshire. It 
has completed the establishment phase 
funded by HLF and has progressed into 
a self sustaining operation.  
 
The Natural and Historic Environment 
Team and Planning Policy have 
continued to support the Environmental 
Records Centre which has provided 
data for a number of PCC projects and 
reports including those associated with 
the Local Development Framework, 
Annual Monitoring Report and National 
Indicator 197.  
 
In addition, PCC receives a weekly 
planning list search update from the 
Records Centre to assist in identifying 
protected sites and species associated 
with each application. This ‘front-
loading’ of data assists with identifying 
ecological issues at the outset of 
development and ultimately may enable 
developments to progress more 
smoothly than would otherwise be the 
case.  
 
 

N/A project progressing very well. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N/A 

Support for the BRC is ongoing. 
Continued budget allocations 
essential.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
PCC to continue to provide 
environmental records to the 
Centre to ensure data records 
are as up to date and complete 
as possible. 
 
 

19 Give particular emphasis to the The protection of these habitats N/A Emphasis on the protection of 

2
2



 

 Key Recommendations and 
Action Points from the 
biodiversity strategy  

Update on Progress/Action underway Barrier to Progress Future Action 

protection of ancient and semi-
natural habitats through all the City 
Council’s activities. 

continues to be emphasised in planning 
for example through the existence and 
use of policies and allocation of 
development sites in the Local 
Development Framework. 
 
The City Councils ancient woodland has 
been surveyed and a management plan 
that will secure these valuable assets for 
decades to come has been produced. 
 
 
Security concerns raised with respect to 
Pococks wood by neighbouring 
businesses have been responded to in 
the reporting period. This has been led 
by Bereavement Services in conjunction 
with the Natural and Historic 
Environment Team as well as 
Peterborough City Services and 
Strategic Property.  
 
Further work has been undertaken 
during the past autumn/winter period at 
Broadway Cemetery, a County Wildlife 
Site, to raise tree canopies and remove 
unwanted self-sets. This has improved 
the ground flora as well as the aesthetic 
appearance of the site. Evidence 
indicates that wildlife is increasing at 
this cemetery and, hopefully, the bird 
and bat boxes previously provided are 
helping in this respect. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Implementation of the plan is 
reliant on existing resources and 
accessing external funding. 
 
 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ancient and semi natural habitats 
is being continued.  
 
 
 
 
Potential sources of external 
funding are identified in the plan 
that has been produced. 
 
 
 
Dialogue continues.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Continue these efforts. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2
3



 

 Key Recommendations and 
Action Points from the 
biodiversity strategy  

Update on Progress/Action underway Barrier to Progress Future Action 

Children’s Services assets and school 
place planning team also operate a 
“landlord’s consent” scheme whereby all 
schools are required to register capital 
works to their premises, this enables 
monitoring and advice to schools in 
respect of grounds works, planting 
schemes, ponds, etc.  Occasionally 
works which are not in accordance with 
City Council policy or procedure, such 
as inappropriate felling or pruning of 
trees, can be intercepted via this 
scheme. 
 
Children’s Services has responsibility for 
all trees on school sites and are in the 
process of going out to tender to various 
arboriculturists for the maintenance of 
the trees on a 3 year rolling programme. 
This will ensure that the sites are visited 
on a regular basis and general advice 
will be given, including the addition of 
features which will enhance the grounds 
as wildlife habitats.  
 
The Natural and Historic Environment 
team has led on the achievement of the 
National Indicator Target for Biodiversity 
(percentage of County Wildlife Sites in 
positive management). This has 
included close liaison with key partners 
such as the Wildlife Trust, 
Environmental Records Centre and 
Peterborough Geology group. 

N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Continue efforts in this area. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Continue efforts in this area. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Continue efforts and budget 
allocations in this area. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2
4



 

 Key Recommendations and 
Action Points from the 
biodiversity strategy  

Update on Progress/Action underway Barrier to Progress Future Action 

Peterborough Conservation Volunteers 
have also played a vital role in 
undertaking work on Peterborough sites 
to maintain and bring them into positive 
management. Within this surveys, 
provision of advice to landowners and 
activities have been carried out on 
behalf on the Natural and Historic 
Environment Team by the Wildlife Trust 
via a Service Level Agreement.  
 
Continued support for the long standing 
Peterborough Barn Owl recovery 
programme. This is now recognised as 
one of the most successful of these 
programmes in the UK. Monitoring in 
the last year has also included 
additional boxes erected in the previous 
reporting period which replacement 
those lost or which had fallen into 
disrepair over the last 14 years. The 
data from this ongoing monitoring 
scheme has proved crucial in the 
provision of  advice to the Planning 
Department with respect to a number of 
strategic planning applications for 
example for wind farm proposals and 
public enquiries and how they would 
relate to this key environmental feature 
of the Unitary Area. Press releases for 
this project and a new webpage have 
been published in the last 12 months.  
 
Continued support for monitoring and 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
None in the reporting period, 
possible concern with respect to 
continued budget allocations.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
None in the reporting period, 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Continue efforts and budget 
allocations in this area. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Continue efforts and budget 

2
5



 

 Key Recommendations and 
Action Points from the 
biodiversity strategy  

Update on Progress/Action underway Barrier to Progress Future Action 

habitat management for the rare four 
spotted moth in Peterborough. The 
monitoring has also allowed the 
extension of the neighbouring County 
Wildlife Site and its continued 
assessment as being in positive 
management which has directly 
contributed to the National Indicator 197 
target included in the Local Area 
Agreement.   
 
The Natural and Historic environment 
team continues to play an active role 
with the County Biodiversity and 
Peterborough Natural Networks 
Partnerships.  
 
Operational works within the shelterbelts 
has been followed by chipping the cut 
back into the belt and the stacking of the 
logs for their gradual decay and 
production of invertebrate habitat. 
 

possible concern with respect to 
continued budget allocations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
None in the reporting period, 
possible concern with respect to 
continued budget allocations. 
 
 
 
N/A 

allocations in this area. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Continue efforts and budget 
allocations in this area. 
 
 
 
 
Continue efforts in this area. 
 
 

20 Investigate and exploit external 
funding opportunities for creating 
and enhancing the Biodiversity value 
of City Council managed land. For 
example from Forestry Commission, 
Landfill Tax or Aggregates Levy. 

All members of the Officer Group have 
access to the Funding Database on the 
BAP partnership web pages.  
 
The seeking of external funding would 
have to be linked to a number of actions 
outlined above. 
 
The Natural and Historic Environment 
team has supported the development of 
a Skills for the Future Bid to the 

N/A at the present time - linked to 
other actions.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
N/A 
 
 

Linked to actions/areas above for 
which for which external funding 
could be sought. 
 
Additional detail is laid out in this 
respect in the proposed update 
to the PCC biodiversity Strategy.  
 
Continue efforts in this area. 
 
 

2
6



 

 Key Recommendations and 
Action Points from the 
biodiversity strategy  

Update on Progress/Action underway Barrier to Progress Future Action 

Heritage Lottery Fund by Peterborough 
Environment City Trust. This includes 
one post which will be hosted within the 
team during 2012 which will map and 
update the Green Grid Strategy as a 
live electronic (GIS) document and 
undertake field surveys of habitat 
networks. One built environment post 
will also be hosted within the team.  
 
The Natural and Historic Environment 
team has supported the development of 
a Countywide pond restoration project 
by the County Biodiversity Partnership. 
Whilst an initial bid was unsuccessful, 
there is the possibility that reserves held 
by the BP may enable some ‘quick-win’ 
pond restoration schemes to progress in 
Peterborough during winter 2011/12. 
 
Debdale Pond in Orton Warterville has 
received attention under guidance from 
PCS from the local open space friends 
group in an attempt to clear the banks 
and allow sunlight to gain entry.  In 
addition there has been a local schools 
bird box campaign utilising the mature 
trees on site. 
 
In 2010 PCS began a review of the 
management techniques deployed 
within the shelter belts and an 
assessment initiated for their potential to 
accommodate multiple habitats at levels 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dependant on securing external 
funding. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N/A 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Continue efforts in this area. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Continue efforts in this area. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Continue efforts in this area. 
 
 

2
7



 

 Key Recommendations and 
Action Points from the 
biodiversity strategy  

Update on Progress/Action underway Barrier to Progress Future Action 

ranging from the forest floor to the top  
This is to be an ongoing process and 
one that will feed into the Tree & 
Woodland Strategy which is currently 
being finalised. 
 

21 Continue to review the use of 
pesticides (including fungicides and 
herbicides) in the City Council’s land 
management.  

COSHH regulations require that this is 
undertaken and therefore this is ongoing 
for all users of pesticides. 
 
The use of pesticides in the Council’s 
cemeteries has been significantly 
reduced and is now only used for weed 
control on paths and roads.  
 
The use of pesticides in the 
Crematorium gardens has been 
significantly reduced by a policy of 
manual hoeing and weeding of the beds, 
etc. Pesticides are now only used for 
treating the roses or for weed control on 
paths and roads.  
 
 

N/A N/A 

2
8



 

Appendix B: Full reports from the members of the Biodiversity Officer Working 
Group 
 

1. Bereavement Services 
 

Cemeteries 
 
1.1  The wildlife value of cemeteries is continuing to be recognised, the Friends of Broadway 

Cemetery Group continue to appreciate the site, which is a County Wildlife Site.  The 
control of bramble and scrub is ongoing at Broadway and the evidence of wildlife has been 
constant since the last reporting period. 

 
1.2 No further action has taken place at Eastfield Cemetery since the last report and the 

County Wildlife Survey carried out in 2009.  The mowing regime has remained the same as 
it was felt that the cemetery is relatively new compared to Broadway and a change in the 
cutting regime to aid the wildlife who not be suitable.  It has been noted that the sighting of 
rabbits and squirrels have increased in recent years.  

 
1.3 Bereavement Services may put forward an application and management plan to the Green 

Flag Award Scheme in 2012 to try and get accreditation for one of their cemeteries.  
 
Crematorium 
 
1.4 The wildlife area has again continued to develop, the native species are propagating well 

supplemented with the planting of plugs of native species.  The sensitive management of 
the area has ensured that the compromise with the cutting regime has been accepted by 
the bereaved.   

 
1.5 The Children’s Memorial Garden continues to flourish it is regularly maintained in a 

sympathetic manner which ensures it continues to attract butterflies, bees and other 
insects.   The planned extension to the path from the garden into Pococks Wood has been 
shelved due to the discovery of an active badger sett along the proposed route. 

 
1.6 The reopening of an old path into Pococks at the eastern end has been considered, a tree 

survey to make safe the route has been carried out and funding is now being identified.  
With bramble cleared and the tree canopies lifted it is hopeful that native woodland plants 
may once again thrive.  

 
1.7 The Bereavement Services Team have been awarded a further Green Flag for 2011. 
 

2. Children’s Services  
 
2.1 Children’s Services has responsibility for all trees on school sites and are in the process of 

going out to tender to various arboriculturists for the maintenance of the trees on a 3 year 
rolling programme. This will ensure that the sites are visited on a regular basis and general 
advice will be given, including the addition of features which will enhance the grounds as 
wildlife habitats.  

  
2.2 58 PCC schools have either registered, participated, or are currently working towards an 

eco-school award (see below). Others are actively involved in similar schemes or have 
developed their own action plans, indicated below as ‘other comparable frameworks’. PECT 
have their own education officer who assists schools with the scheme.   

 
Eco Schools Awards Available: Bronze, Silver, Green Flag which must be renewed every 2 
years. 
 

 

29



 

School Name type of school 
Eco School 
Award 

Date 
awarded/registered school garden/ pond 

Abbotsmede Primary primary bronze 01/12/2008 

Well developed garden 
& pond and links to 
John Clare cottage 

All Saints C of E 
Junior School primary Silver 01/03/2011  Garden & pond 

Arthur Mellows 
Village College 

Secondary 
academy registered 09/06/10   

Barnack C of E 
Primary School primary Bronze 02/02/2011 Garden & pond 

Beeches Primary 
School Primary Bronze 01/05/2011 Garden & pond 

Bishop Creighton 
Primary School primary Registered 01/01/2011  Garden & pond 

Braybrook Primary 
School primary Silver 01/04/2011 Garden 

Brewster Avenue 
Infant School infant Registered 01/07/2011  Garden & pond 

Ormiston Bushfield 
Academy secondary bronze 01/01/2008 Garden 

Castor C of E 
Primary School primary Bronze 12/05/2010 Garden 

Cavestede Early 
Years Centre 

Early years 
centre Silver 01/01/2010 Garden & pond 

Discovery Primary 
School primary Silver 02/10 Garden 

Dogsthorpe Infant 
School infant registered 01/11/2008  Garden 

Dogsthorpe Junior 
School junior silver 01/05/2008  Garden & pond 

Eye C of E Primary 
School primary 1

st
 Green Flag 02/10 Garden & pond 

Eyrescroft Primary 
School primary Silver 01/06/2011   

Fulbridge School primary bronze 01/11/2006  Garden & pond 

Gladstone Primary 
School primary Bronze 01/02/2011 Garden 

Gunthorpe Primary 
School primary bronze 01/07/2008  Garden 

Hampton College secondary Silver 07/10   

Hampton Hargate 
Primary School primary bronze 01/02/2008   

Hampton Vale 
Primary School primary Bronze 01/02/2011  Garden 

Heltwate School special Registered 01/07/2011  Garden 

Heritage Park 
Primary School primary Bronze 01/07/2011   

Iqra Academy Secondary 

Faith in the 
environment 
school 03/2010 - 

Highlees Community 
Primary School primary bronze 01/03/2008  Garden 

Jack Hunt School secondary Silver 06/10   

John Clare Primary 
School primary 1

st
 Green Flag 01/07/2011 Garden 

Ken Stimpson 
Community School secondary Silver 01/03/2011 Garden & orchard 

Leighton Primary 
School primary silver 01/07/2008  Garden & pond 

Longthorpe Primary 
School primary Bronze 16/03/2006 Garden 

30



 

School Name type of school 
Eco School 
Award 

Date 
awarded/registered school garden/ pond 

Marshfields School special - -  Garden 

Matley Primary 
School primary 

Other 
comparable 
framework 02/10 Garden 

Middleton Primary 
School primary Bronze 01/04/2011 Garden 

Nene Valley Primary 
School primary silver 01/07/2006 Garden & Pond 

NeneGate School special - - 
Garden currently being 
developed 

Newark Hill Primary 
School primary Bronze 04/10 Garden & Pond 

Newborough C of E 
Primary School primary 

Other 
comparable 
framework 01/10/2009 Garden & Pond 

Northborough 
Primary School primary 

Other 
comparable 
framework 02/2010 

Garden, Pond & 
Orchard 

Norwood Primary 
School primary 

Other 
comparable 
framework 02/10 Garden 

Oakdale Primary 
School primary Bronze 01/04/2011   

Old Fletton Primary 
School primary bronze 07/01/2009 Garden & Pond 

Orton Longueville 
School secondary Registered 06/2010   

Orton Wistow 
Primary School primary registered 29/06/2006  Garden & Pond 

Parnwell Primary 
School primary Silver  15/05/10  Garden 

Paston Ridings 
Primary School primary - -   

Peakirk cum Glinton 
C of E Primary 
School primary Registered 01/05/2011 Garden & Pond 

Peterborough School 
independent 
(4-19) 1

st
 Green Flag 07/10 Garden & Pond 

Phoenix School special Silver 15/03/10 Garden 

Queen's Drive Infant 
School infant Registered 2009 Garden 

Ravensthorpe 
Primary School primary 

Other 
comparable 
framework 10/2009   

Sacred Heart RC 
Primary School primary Green Flag 07/10 Garden & Pond 

Southfields Infant 
School infant Green Flag 12/09 Garden & Pond 

St Augustine's C of E 
Junior School junior 4th Green Flag 01/07/10 

They now have an 
allotment as well as 
gardens in grounds 

St Botolph's C of E 
Primary School primary Silver 01/01/2011 Garden 

St John Fisher 
Catholic High School secondary Bronze 01/10   

St John's Church 
School primary Registered 19/03/10   

St Thomas More RC primary Other 02/10 Garden 

31



 

School Name type of school 
Eco School 
Award 

Date 
awarded/registered school garden/ pond 

Primary School comparable 
framework  

Stanground College secondary - -   

Stanground St John's 
C of E Primary 
School primary Registered 01/04/10  Garden 

The Duke of Bedford 
Primary School primary Registered 01/11/2010 Garden 

The King's School secondary silver 01/06/2008  Garden & Pond 

The Thomas Deacon 
Academy city academy registered 01/05/2008  Garden 

The Voyager School secondary Silver 07/09   

Thorpe Primary 
School primary 

Other 
comparable 
framework 09/2010  Garden 

Watergall Primary 
School primary Registered 01/07/2011 Garden & Pond 

Welbourne Primary 
School primary bronze 01/07/2006   

Welland Primary 
School primary - -   

Werrington Primary 
School primary 1st Green Flag 01/02/2009  Garden 

West Town Primary 
School primary 

Other 
comparable 
framework 09/2009   

William Law Primary 
School primary Silver 03/10 

 New orchard planted 
and small garden 

Winyates Primary 
School primary Registered 01/05/2011 Garden 

Wittering Primary 
School primary - -   

Woodston Primary 
School primary 

Other 
comparable 
framework Pre 2009 Garden 

 
2.2 Children’s Services assets and school place planning team also operate a “landlord’s 

consent” scheme whereby all schools are required to register capital works to their 
premises, this enables monitoring and advice to schools in respect of grounds works, 
planting schemes, ponds, etc.  Occasionally works which are not in accordance with City 
Council policy or procedure, such as inappropriate felling or pruning of trees, can be 
intercepted via this scheme. 

 
2.3 With a rapidly expanding school building programme at both primary and secondary level 

sustainable features are being incorporated wherever possible.  Green roofs that 
encourage birds and insects are being installed for both new builds and replacement roofs.  
External landscaping designs are developed to provide some natural spaces both to benefit 
wildlife and to be an educational resource for pupils. Where a pond had to be relocated to 
enable a school extension to be built, advice was taken from Natural England and Froglife 
to ensure suitable alternative ponds were provided. 

 
2.4 Schools are funded mainly from Government grants and the vast majority of the funding is 

devolved to them to make their own management decisions.  Therefore, they do not have to 
comply with City Council procurement regulations.  This means that they can use their own 
preferred contractors, and are free to specify and order works.  Schools have to apply for 
appropriate planning and building control permission as well as consent from Childrens 
Services as landlords 

 

32



 

3. Climate Change 
 
3.1 Unfortunately there has been little progress against the refresh of the climate change 

strategy due to the need to focus resources within other areas of the climate change work. 
However, the climate change officer has now begun the process of refresh with a view to 
prepare the draft version for Environment Scrutiny in early 2012. 

 
4 Natural Environment 
 

The Natural and Historic Environment Team by its nature continues to be involved with 
much biodiversity activity both within the City Council and in partnership with external 
partners. A significant proportion of the team’s activity is focussed in providing expert 
advice to the Planning Departments with respect to the development of the Local 
Development Framework as well as planning applications and the implementation of 
development within the Unitary Area.  

 
4.1 Recent/ongoing activities. These include: 
 

a) Leading on the achievement of the National Indicator Target for Biodiversity. This 
has included close liaison with key partners such as the Wildlife Trust, 
Environmental Records Centre and Peterborough Geology group. Peterborough 
Conservation Volunteers have also played a vital role in undertaking work on 
Peterborough sites to maintain and bring them into positive management.  

 
b) Support to the development of the successful Skills for the Future Bid to the 

Heritage Lottery Fund by Peterborough Environment City Trust. This includes one 
post which will be hosted within the team during 2012 which will map and update 
the Green Grid Strategy as a live electronic (GIS) document and undertaken field 
surveys of habitat networks. In addition one built environment post is currently 
being hosted within the team during 2011.  

 
c) Continued support for the long standing Peterborough Barn Owl recovery 

programme. This is now recognised as one of the most successful of these 
programmes in the UK. The data from this ongoing monitoring scheme has proved 
crucial in the provision of  advice to the Planning Department with respect to a 
number of strategic planning applications for example for wind farm proposals and 
public enquiries and how they would relate to this key environmental feature of the 
Unitary Area. Press releases for this project and a new webpage have been 
published in the last 12 months.  

 
d) Liaison and advice to officers and departments from across the City Council with 

respect to Biodiversity. In addition to those specifically represented on the 
Biodiversity Officer Working Group these also for example include highways and 
rights of way officers.  

 
e) Surveys, provision of advice to landowners and activities carried out on behalf on 

the Natural Environment Team by the Wildlife Trust via a Service Level Agreement. 
 

f) Continued support for monitoring and habitat management for the rare four spotted 
moth in Peterborough. The monitoring has also allowed the extension of the 
neighbouring County Wildlife Site and its continued assessment as being in positive 
management which has directly contributed to the National Indicator 197 target 
included in the Local Area Agreement.   

 
g) Representation of the City Council with and support to the Cambridgeshire and 

Peterborough Environmental Records Centre which has provided data for a number 
of PCC projects and reports including those associated with the Local Development 
Framework, Annual Monitoring Report and National Indicator 197.  

 

33



 

h) Representation of the City Council with and support to the Cambridgeshire and 
Peterborough Biodiversity Partnership and its associated projects. The work of the 
partnership has recently included the development of a ponds restoration project 
aimed at restoring at least 30 ponds across the County with at least 5 of these 
within the Peterborough area. Whilst the initial bid was unsuccessful, it is 
anticipated that funding may become available from reserves in the Biodiversity 
Partnership to enable several of Peterborough’s ponds to be restored in the near 
future. 

 
i) Representation of the City Council within and support to the Natural Networks 

Partnership.  
 

j) Administration and technical support to the City Councils Natural Environmental 
Grant Scheme which has supported a significant number of projects with schools, 
Parish Councils and other organisations.  

 
k) Continued support to the planning department to enable the integration of 

Biodiversity into new development. This has for example included recent and 
ongoing developments at, Hempstead, Great Haddon as well as wind farms, road 
schemes and minerals and waste sites. A planning application checklist has also 
been produced based upon the Natural England standing advice for use by 
planning applicants and planning officers.  

 
l) Continued support to the Planning Policy Team with respect to the production of 

Local Development Framework.  
 

m) Liaison with and support to local conservation organisations such as the Wildlife 
Trust, Buglife, Froglife and the Langdyke Countryside Trust and their sites and 
projects.  

 
n) Provision of support and guidance to landowners and community groups in relation 

to biodiversity, this has included Schools and Parish Councils.  
 

o) Provision of biodiversity education via schools liaison, interpretation, guided walks 
and presentations, including a bat walk.  

 
p) Support to the Peterborough Green Festival for example through Officer support 

during the planning of this event and provision of activities as part of the festival.  
 

q) Administration and support to the Peterborough Tree and Pond Warden Networks. 
The City Council continued as a full member of the Tree Council and was therefore 
able to continue to fully support the tree Warden Network. 

 
r) Continued support to Peterborough Conservation Volunteers where their activities 

have taken place on PCC owned sites and Peterborough County Wildlife Sites.  
 
4.2 Current activities: In addition to the continuation of many of the activities listed in 4.1 

current activities and projects of note include: 
 
a) Leading and co-ordinating the update on annual progress against the City Councils 

biodiversity Strategy, which is due to be reviewed by Cabinet in September.  
 

b) Support to PECT with respect to the production of work and training plans for Skill 
for the Future placements which will be hosted with the team.  

 
c) Continued support to the County Wildlife Sites System and progression against the 

LAA/National Indicator target.  
 

 
 

34



 

4.3 Future Activities: Where relevant and budgetary approval is received it is planned to 
continue activities listed in 4.1 and 4.2 such as the Natural Environment Projects Grant. 
Other planned future activities and projects of note include:  
 
 
a) To continue to work with the project group of the Biodiversity Partnership to prepare 

project bids for various schemes aimed at enhancing biodiversity at several of 
Peterborough’s County Wildlife Sites and ponds.  

 
b) To continue to work with PECT to ensure that the Skills for the Future posts hosted 

by the team are well recruited and a success.  
 

c) To work with bereavement services to investigate the production of a management 
plan for Pococks wood and possibly the accessing of external funding for woodland 
management works.  

 
d) To work with Natural Networks partners on the Forest for Peterborough initiative.  

 
5.0       Property Design and Maintenance     
 

5.1       Local Authorities have an explicit duty to consider biodiversity in the discharge of their 
functions. In accordance with this duty and the City Councils Environmental Strategy the 
Property Design and Maintenance division actively champion biodiversity and sustainability 
in a number of ways, the majority of which are already incorporated into standard practice 
through the careful specification and monitoring of contracts. For example:  

 

• ensuring trees are adequately protected when development takes place 

• planting  new trees for any that have to be removed when development takes place,  

• the  control of waste  and pollution,  

• the sustainable  sourcing of materials,   

• the temporary storage of soils that might otherwise be removed from site,   

• good  site fencing  to ensure that areas damaged by the very disruptive nature of 
construction activity to  a minimum 

 
Building on previous initiatives, the Property Design and Maintenance division, now 
Enterprise Peterborough, continues to promote biodiversity and sustainability, wherever it 
can.  

 

5.2 Over the last year green roofs have been installed at Hampton Hargate and Woodston 
Junior Schools as well as on Children’s Centres at John Clare School Helpston, and 
Thorney. 

 

5.3 A green roof is also being proposed at Eye Primary School and the design for the new 
Welland School includes extensive green roofs, rain water harvesting and wood chip 
heating. 

 

5.4 At Hampton Hargate two wildlife ponds have been created to replace one that was lost in 
the extension works. This project also includes rain water harvesting and ground sources 
heat pumps.  

 

5.5 The new Community Car Park at Werrington using sustainable drainage concepts  has 
created  opportunities for short term damp habitats within its extensive wild flower areas.  

 

5.6 Planting schemes, which included a small area of new woodland at Clare Lodge continues 
to  use native plants wherever appropriate as well as woven willow structures in children`s 
areas. 

 
5.7       By designing with the ethos of removing the need to consume electrical energy for lighting 

and ventilation, we seek to make significant reductions on existing and new buildings 

35



 

potential carbon footprint thus having a positive environmental impact in the short and long 
term. 

 
6.0  Peterborough In bloom 
 
6.1 An annual garden competition has been co-ordinated for the last 5 years, 2011 being the 

fifth year; this includes a wildlife friendly category. This receives a steady percentage of 
entrants and the gardens are judged on a wide variety of elements, all contributing to 
biodiversity. Peterborough was also awarded a Gold award for Anglia in Bloom. 

 
7. Enterprise Peterborough (formerly City Services) 
 
Action in support of biodiversity & sustainability taken or planned 2010/11 
 
7.1 The G50 parkway grass cutting specification has been changed to one breed along the 

kerb line of 50mm to 100 mm with the remainder cut at 100mm to 200mm where it was 
previously 75 mm. In addition various areas across the city are now cut at 50mm to 100mm 
where previously they were cut at 25mm to 50mm. This not only reduces an operational 
carbon footprint but allows for colonisation of wildflowers.  

  
7.2 The cutting regime for shrubs has been altered to flail works from the traditional cutter bar 

which results in a quicker operation for carbon diminution as well as a reduction in 
collection requirement followed by transportation to tip. In addition the tops of 
shrubs/hedges are not cut back between 1st March and 31st August due to the active/ 
nesting birds policy. A site-line cut only, on a health and safety basis, is carried out which 
totals 10% of the 750,000m2 and the same amount for 58,000lm of hedges.  

  
7.3 Operational works within the shelterbelts has been followed by chipping the cut back into 

the belt and the stacking of the logs for their gradual decay and production of invertebrate 
habitat. In addition chippings from shrubs and hedges are cut back into the beds where 
possible and into shelterbelts if the beds are not possible. 

  
7.4 An agreement has been made between Betterland and City Services through which garden 

waste collected from the brown bins is taken and composted, the latter being used to grow 
plants purchased by the Authority for amenity landscaping. Recently we delivered 
approximately 300 tonnes of leafs, grass cuttings, bedding plants for composting.  

  
7.5 The composting facilities at Bretton Park have been expanded and the resultant material 

reintroduced over the shrub and annual beds.  Estimated tonnage amounts to that within 
the region of 300 tonnes during 10/11. 

  
7.6 The Crematorium has retained the Green Flag award within the time period with support for 

associated issues of sustainability. We have also retained a Green Flag award for Central 
and Itter Parks.  

  
7.7 As a component of the In Bloom campaign a move has been made towards recycling of the 

dead heads cut from bedding.  Historically the outcome was to transport material to tip.  
  
7.8 The Boardwalks at Thorpe Meadows continue to be opened up by thinning the canopies of 

the Willow trees overhanging the numerous ponds. This action has been taken to promote 
amphibian habitat creation.  

  
7.9 Debdale Pond in Orton Warterville has received attention from the local open space friends 

group in an attempt to clear the banks and allow sunlight to gain entry.  In addition there 
has been a local schools bird box campaign utilising the mature trees on site.  

 
7.10 An area of land adjacent to Potter’s Way has been allowed to develop naturally during the 

last 4 years through deliberate non-intervention.  
 
7.11 A review of the management techniques deployed within the shelter belts continues along 

36



 

with an assessment of their potential to accommodate multiple habitats at levels ranging 
from the forest floor to the top. This on-going process will feed into the Trees & Woodland 
Strategy which is currently being finalised. 

 
7.12 At Central Park some areas, the sunken garden for example, offer the potential for different 

planting schemes rather than the summer bedding planted at the moment.  Different 
planting schemes designed to attract bees, etc. need to be explored. The use of perennials 
is another option, as are using native species. Also, we could stack logs after trees are 
removed and leave a section of the trunk standing, rather than clearing and grinding. 

 
7.13 Planning applications detailing the implementation of SUDS are forecast to become far 

more frequent in the future. Management will have an element relating to bio-diversity and 
maintenance teams will require very specific training to manage SUDS systems in a 
professional manner. 

 
7.14 Julia Chatterton has been leading on PCC SUDS work and has also, as part of the flood 

risk management programme, looked at watercourses. There is currently nothing in the 
Enterprise Peterborough specification about managing watercourses although there is the 
PCC requirement in the method statements. Julia is going to prepare a specification during 
the autumn and there will be some funding for Enterprise Peterborough to manage the 
City’s watercourses according to the specification, next year. The Wildlife Officer is likely to 
be contributing to the specification. 

 
ALLOTMENTS: 

       
7.11 An on-going review of allotments is seeking to address rubbish dumping issues and 

investigating opportunities for composting. In addition the Allotments Officer has contributed 
towards a workshop organised by the Environment Network at the Green Backyard.   

 
PLAY PROVISION: 
 
7.12 The Big Lottery Wildplay project has now been completed and the successes include an 

increase in the number of children and young families using their local greenspace or 
nature reserve; new audiences to wildlife activities and sites from different ability, socio 
economic and BME groups; a fresh approach to encouraging people into the natural 
environment using play and adventure; an increase in children and young people joining 
local wildlife groups and an increase in the number of children and young people enjoying 
their local greenspace in a positive way. 

  
7.13 An unexpected outcome from the Wildplay project was the demand from young people for 

adventure and from families for guided outdoor events.  There is scope to build on this work 
and do much more of it.  Funding needs to be directed at facilitation of play rather than 
capital items such as structures.  The Wildlife Trust built Watch Groups in for sustainability 
but these groups can only accept a certain number of children and families.  We developed 
materials for children and adults with children / group leaders to facilitate and encourage 
further development self-interest, but we have evidence of demand from more people in 
Peterborough for a facilitated service of this nature; nothing else exists here. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

37



38

This page is intentionally left blank



ENVIRONMENT CAPITAL SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 
 

Agenda Item No. 6 

8 SEPTEMBER 2011 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Executive Director of Operations                                  
 
Contact Officer(s) Trevor Gibson  
Contact Details - 01733 317401 
 

ENVIRONMENT CAPITAL PERFORMANCE UPDATE 
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 This report updates the Committee on performance against the Council’s Environment Capital 

ambition as measured by Forum for the Future through its Sustainable Cities Index 2010. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 The Committee is asked to note the city’s performance as measured by the Sustainable Cities 
Index and identify issues it may wish to consider in more depth at future meetings. 
 

3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY  
 

3.1 Adopting this approach will ensure that subsequent Scrutiny meetings will directly contribute to the 
objectives and outcomes contained in the Sustainable Community Strategy. 
 
This committee in particular most directly contributes to the ‘Creating the UK’s Environment Capital’ 
priority in the Sustainable Community Strategy. 
 

4. BACKGROUND 
 

4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Peterborough’s Sustainable Community Strategy contains four priorities: Creating Strong and 
Supportive Communities; Creating the UK’s Environment Capital; Creating Opportunities, Tackling 
Inequalities; Substantial and Truly Sustainable Growth. Each of these priorities has four specific 
outcomes, beneath which sit a diverse range of actions and interventions to deliver lasting positive 
change for Peterborough.  

 
By adopting the Sustainable Community Strategy, the council has committed itself to becoming the 
UK’s Environment Capital, building on the longstanding experience as one of four Environment 
Cities in the UK.  The “journey” from Environment City to Environment Capital is considered 
appropriate given the shift towards global environmental challenges such as climate change as well 
as the city’s ambition to grow substantially and sustainably.   

 
Environment Capital now has widespread support as a key focus and unique selling point for 
Peterborough which has been achieved through clear political direction and the efforts of a 
committed, cross-sector partnership working. 

4.2 
 

At its meeting in July, the Committee resolved that before the City Council launched its 
Environment Capital approach, agreed criteria should be met and an independent assessment 
should be undertaken.  The most cost effective basis for this comparative work is the Forum for the 
Future Sustainable Cities Index. The organization assessed Peterborough as part of the Jonathan 
Porritt Master Class in Nov 2009. Forum for the Future has recently assessed the city against 2010 
Index. It should be noted that the Index compares Peterborough with a number of much larger UK 
cities but it is one of only a few, reliable local authority comparators. Peterborough is the only city 
which voluntarily submits itself to this additional scrutiny with regard to its sustainability 

39



performance. 
 
In order that progress and trends can be tracked and, in the absence of a defined set of 
comparative indicators, it was agreed that the city would again use the Index as its preferred 
measurement methodology.  Earlier this year, Forum for the Future was commissioned to compare 
the city against the 2010 Index and Britain’s’ twenty largest cities.  
 
The results (including comparative 2009 performance) are as follows:- 
 

 
Index 2009  Index 2010  
 Score       

Rank  
Score  Rank  

Environmental 
Performance  

11.625  11th  12.0  7th =  

Quality of Life  6.5  16th 
=  

9.0  14th =  

Future Proofing  16.75  3rd  13.75  5th =  
Overall  34.875  10th  32.250  10th  

 
(N.B. Scores for each basket are out of a maximum of 21. The overall score is the sum of the three 
baskets and is, therefore, out of a total of 63. Rank position is from 1 to 21.) 

 
Overall, the city has retained its position.  Whilst slipping back slightly under the “future- proofing” 
basket of measures it has improved its score and position against environmental and quality of life 
measures. The following sections look briefly at each of the baskets in a little more detail. 
 

4.3 Environmental performance 
 
This basket focuses on environmental performance using data on air quality, waste, resource use 
and ecological footprint. 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE  
 

Index 2009  Index 2010  

 Data Score Rank  Data                                 
Score 

Rank  

Air quality  12.4 µgm-3 per km2  21.0  1st  11.1 µgm-3 per km2  21.0  1st  
Biodiversity  61% of Local Sites 

under positive 
management  

20.5  1st =  71% of Local Sites 
under positive 
management  

21.0  1st  

Waste  570.78 kg per person 
in 2007/8  

1.0  21st  558.00 kg per 
person in 2008/9  

1.0  21st  

Ecological 
footprint  

5.24 ha per person in 
2004  

4.0  18th  4.57 ha per person 
in 2006  

5.0  17th  

BASKET  11.625  11th  12.0  7th =  

 
As can be seen from the above table, the City performs well in this area compared with the 20 
largest UK cities. It has substantially improved on its 2009 rank position. Peterborough leads the 
way on air quality and biodiversity although the waste per head of population remains a concern 
alongside the ecological footprint.  The latter measures the amount of global land needed to sustain 
each resident of the local authority. Amongst other things, the calculation takes into consideration 
domestic fuel use, car fuel use, meat, fish and vegetable consumption. 
 
Turning specifically to the waste produced per head of population, the figures for 2009/10 and the 
estimates for 2010/11 have reduced for the amount of household waste collected per person (BVPI 
84a) to 493.06 kg in 09/10 and 486.27kg in 10/11, a significant decrease from the 2008/09 figure of 
558 kg.  This still makes us high compared to the other 20 cities, which appear to be reducing the 
figure at a faster rate.  It is worth recognizing that the nature of the large cities in this comparison 
needs to take into account the different nature of the waste generated.  Peterborough is likely to 
produce more household waste as it collects garden waste at the kerbside which is not common 
practice in big cities. 

40



 
4.4 Quality of Life 

 
This basket attempts to measure what the city is like to live in and how it is performing on social 
sustainability. Whilst not normally topics within the scope of this Committee, it is included here for 
completeness. 

 
QUALITY OF LIFE  Index 2009  Index 2010  

 Data Score Rank Data                                       
Score  

Rank  

Employment  5.6% claiming JSA 
in July 2009  

10.0  12th  4.5% claiming JSA in 
July 2010  

11.0  10th  

Education  56.0% with NVQ2 
or higher  

5.0  17th  51.1% with NVQ2 or 
higher  

2.0  20th  

Health  78.70 years life 
expectancy  

14.0  8th  79.35 years life 
expectancy  

15.5  6th =  

Transport - 
access  

NA  NA  NA  196.5 mins per month  9.0  13th  

Green 
space  

1.22 GF & GP 
awards per 100’000  

8.0  14th  1.75 GF & GP awards 
per 100’000  

10.0  12th  

BASKET   9.25        12th 
= 

 9.5      14
th
= 

 

The quality of life score and rank have reduced slightly since the 2009 assessment although the 
overall basket has seen improvements in relation to the percentage of individuals claiming job 
seekers allowance, life expectancy and the number of green spaces per 100,000 inhabitants. 
 
The Transport indicator measures the number of minutes per month per household spent walking 
and/or taking public transport or cycling to four key services: food, GP, further education and 
secondary school. The research necessary to calculate this indicator was not commissioned as part 
of the brief but the work has since been undertaken though the results were not available for the 
report deadline.  The figure used in the table above is an all city average.  The actual figure may 
alter the relative rank position and, therefore, Peterborough’s overall rank (see 4.2 above). 
Members will be provided with a verbal update at the Committee.  
 

4.5 Future Proofing 
 
The future proofing indicators seek to capture how cities are addressing some of the strategic 
issues that require local, civic leadership including preparations for climate change, resilience to 
changes in the food supply chain, re-use of resources and dynamism and innovation in the local 
economy. 

 
FUTURE PROOFING  Index 2009  Index 2010  

 Data  Score  Rank  Data  Score  Rank  
Climate change  13.0 points for 

policy, strategy 
and action 
planning  

10.0  12th  12.0 points for policy, 
strategy and action 
planning  

2.0  20th  

Local Food  14.73 allotments 
per 1,000 people  

20.0  2nd  14.05 allotments per 
1,000 people  

21.0  1st  

Economy  31.23 VAT 
registrations per 
10,000 people  

16.0  6th  35.34 biz births per 
10,000 people  

11.0  11th  

Recycling  46.21% of waste 
recycled (April 
2007-March 2008)  

21.0  1st  47.95% of waste 
recycled (April 2008-
March 2009)  

21.0  1st  

BASKET  16.75  3rd  13.75  5th=  

 
 
The city has slipped back slightly on this basket though continues to perform well against the other 

41



cities, however, it ranks first in relation to its recycling rate and on allotment availability. 
 
Whilst the performance on the climate change indicator is disappointing, it must be noted that this is 
assessed on 2010 performance.  A significant amount of positive work has been undertaken since 
the adoption of the Carbon Management Action Plan which is likely to substantially improve 
performance against the 2011 Index.  An update on the Carbon Management Action Plan is due to 
be published in November 2011.  In addition, as it is no longer a statutory requirement, 
Peterborough has not progressed the climate change adaptation work as far as some other 
authorities.  However, the partnership with Rutland County Council offers the opportunity to 
progress this work and this is currently being explored. 
 

5. KEY ISSUES 
 

5.1 Within the scope of this Committee’s responsibilities, Members are asked to focus on a number of 
areas for improvement within the document, namely, but not exclusively: - 
 

• Kg of waste produced per head of population. 

• Ecological footprint and  

• Climate Change 
 

5.2 Members may also wish to identify issues for closer scrutiny by including these in the Committee’s 
future work programme. 
 

6. IMPLICATIONS 
 

6.1 For the city to achieve its ambition of becoming the UK’s Environment Capital, it must show a 
strong and evidenced track record of environmental achievement backed by a focus on addressing 
areas for improvement. The Sustainable Cities Index is one mechanism through which the city’s 
response to key challenges can be monitored and areas for improvement identified. 
 

7. CONSULTATION 
 

7.1 The Environment Capital initiatives and projects outlined in this report are subject to individual and 
specific consultation as part of their development and implementation. 
 

8. NEXT STEPS 
 

8.1 The outcomes of the latest Sustainable Cities Index will be used to focus on key areas of 
improvement where these are within the sphere of influence of the local authority. 
 

It is intended to commission Forum for the Future later in 2011 to benchmark Peterborough against 
the 2011 Sustainable Cities Index. 
 

9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
 

9.1 Peterborough in the Sustainable Cities Index 2010 – Forum for the Future. 
 

10. APPENDICES 
 

10.1 None 
 

 

  

42



ENVIRONMENT CAPITAL SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 
 

Agenda Item No. 7 

8 SEPTEMBER 2011 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Solicitor to the Council 
 
Report Author – Paulina Ford, Senior Governance Officer, Scrutiny 
Contact Details – 01733 452508 or email paulina.ford@peterborough.gov.uk 
 

FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS 
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 This is a regular report to the Environment Capital Scrutiny Committee outlining the content of 

the Council’s Forward Plan. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 That the Committee identifies any relevant items for inclusion within their work programme. 
 

3. BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 The latest version of the Forward Plan is attached at Appendix 1.  The Plan contains those key 
decisions, which the Leader of the Council believes that the Cabinet or individual Cabinet 
Member(s) will be making over the next four months. 
 

3.2 The information in the Forward Plan provides the Committee with the opportunity of considering 
whether it wishes to seek to influence any of these key decisions, or to request further 
information. 
 

3.3 If the Committee wished to examine any of the key decisions, consideration would need to be 
given as to how this could be accommodated within the work programme. 
 

4. CONSULTATION 

 
4.1 Details of any consultation on individual decisions are contained within the Forward Plan. 

 
5. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

 
 None 

 
6. APPENDICES 

 

 Appendix 1 – Forward Plan of Executive Decisions 
 
 

43



44

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

PETERBOROUGH CITY  
COUNCIL’S FORWARD PLAN 

1 SEPTEMBER 2011 TO 31 DECEMBER 2011 
 

 
 
 
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 1
 

4
5



 

FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS - 1 SEPTEMBER 2011 TO 31 DECEMBER 2011 AB 
 

During the period from 1 September 2011 To 31 December 2011 Peterborough City Council's Executive intends to take 'key decisions' on the issues set 
out below.  Key decisions relate to those executive decisions which are likely to result in the Council spending or saving money in excess of £500,000 
and/or have a significant impact on two or more wards in Peterborough. 
 
This Forward Plan should be seen as an outline of the proposed decisions and it will be updated on a monthly basis.  The dates detailed within the Plan 
are subject to change and those items amended or identified for decision more than one month in advance will be carried over to forthcoming plans.  
Each new plan supersedes the previous plan.  Any questions on specific issues included on the Plan should be included on the form which appears at 
the back of the Plan and submitted to Alex Daynes, Senior Governance Officer, Chief Executive’s Department, Town Hall, Bridge Street, PE1 1HG (fax 
01733 452483). Alternatively, you can submit your views via e-mail to alexander.daynes@peterborough.gov.uk or by telephone on 01733 452447. 
 
The Council invites members of the public to attend any of the meetings at which these decisions will be discussed and the papers listed on the Plan can 
be viewed free of charge although there will be a postage and photocopying charge for any copies made. All decisions will be posted on the Council's 
website: www.peterborough.gov.uk.   If you wish to make comments or representations regarding the 'key decisions' outlined in this Plan, please submit 
them to the Governance Support Officer using the form attached.  For your information, the contact details for the Council's various service departments 
are incorporated within this plan. 
 

NEW ITEMS THIS MONTH: 
 
Street Lighting Policy - KEY/04SEP/11 
Consolidation of Property Assets - KEY/05SEP/11 
Budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy - KEY/06SEP/11 
Peterborough’s Transport Partnership Policy for pupils aged 4-16 years - KEY/01NOV/11 
 
 

 
 

4
6



 
 
 

SEPTEMBER 
 

KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED 

DATE OF 
DECISION 

DECISION MAKER RELEVANT  
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS 

REPORTS 

Delivery of the Council's 
Capital Receipt 
Programme through the 
Sale of Land and 
Buildings - Vawser Lodge 
Thorpe Road - 
KEY/04DEC/10 
To authorise the Chief 
Executive, in consultation with 
the Solicitor to the Council, 
Executive Director – Strategic 
Resources, the Corporate 
Property Officer and the 
Cabinet Member Resources, 
to negotiate and conclude the 
sale of Vawser Lodge 

 

September 
2011 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Resources 
 

Sustainable 
Growth 

Consultation will 
take place with 
the Cabinet 
Member, Ward 
councillors, 
relevant internal 
departments & 
external 
stakeholders as 
appropriate 
 
 

Andrew Edwards 
Head of Peterborough 
Delivery Partnership 
Tel: 01733 452303 
andrew.edwards@peterborou
gh.gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken 
 

4
7



 

Security Framework 
Contract - lot 2 - 
KEY/09DEC/10 
Award lot 2 of framework 
contract; cash collection and 
cash in transit services, 
delivering services for the 
council such as collecting 
cash from parking meters and 
banking it securely. 

 
 

September 
2011 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Resources 
 

Sustainable 
Growth 

Internal and 
external 
stakeholders as 
appropriate 

 
 
 

Matthew Rains 
P2P Manager 
Tel: 01733 317996 
matthew.rains@peterborough
.gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
made 
 

Section 75 Agreements 
with Cambridgeshire 
Community Services, 
NHS Peterborough and 
Cambridge & 
Peterborough Foundation 
Trust - KEY/12FEB/11 
Approval of s.75 Agreements 
with Cambridgeshire 
Community Services for the 
provision of Adult Social Care; 
with NHS Peterborough for 
the provision of Learning 
Disability Services; and with 
Cambridge & Peterborough 
Foundation Trust for the 
provision of mental health 
services. 
 

September 
2011 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Adult Social Care 
 

Health Issues Relevant internal 
and external 
Stakeholders 

 
 

Denise Radley 
Executive Director of Adult 
Social Services 
Tel: 01733 758444 
denise.radley@peterborough.
gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
Governance 
Team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken. 
 

4
8



 

Social Work Practice Pilot 
- KEY/01APR/11 
Agree arrangements for the 
procurement and provision of 
Social Work Practice Pilots for 
children in care. 
 

September 
2011 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Children's Services 
 

Creating 
Opportunities and 
Tackling 
Inequalities 

Social work staff; 
children in care; 
corporate parenting 
panel members 
and Trade Unions 
 
 

Andrew Brunt 
Assistant Director - Families 
and Communities 
 
andrew.brunt@peterborough.
gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
Governance 
Team one week 
before the 
decision is 
made. 
 

Orton Longueville School 
and Stanground College - 
KEY/13JUN/11 
To vary the Ormiston 
Bushfield Academy (OBA) 
Design and Build Contract 
with Kier Regional Ltd (trading 
as Kier Eastern) to allow for 
the design and build of Orton 
Longueville School and 
Stanground College 

 

September 
2011 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Education, Skills 
and University, 
Cabinet Member for 
Resources 
 

Creating 
Opportunities and 
Tackling 
Inequalities 

Executive 
Director Children 
Services, 
Executive 
Director 
Resources, 
Solicitor to the 
Council, Ward 
Councillors 
 
 

Brian Howard 
PFI Project Manager 
Tel: 01733 863976 
brian.howard@peterborough.
gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken 
 

Energy Services 
Company - KEY/03JUL/11 
To consider potential future 
developments of energy 
related products. 

 

September 
2011 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Environment 
Capital, Cabinet 
Member for 
Resources 
 

Environment 
Capital 

Internal and 
External 
Stakeholders 

 
 

John Harrison 
Executive Director-Strategic 
Resources 
Tel: 01733 452398 
john.harrison@peterborough.
gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
Governance 
Team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken. 
 

4
9



 

Expansion to Hampton 
College - KEY/04JUL/11 
To approve the forward build 
of phase 2 of Hampton 
College. 
 

September 
2011 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Education, Skills 
and University, 
Cabinet Member for 
Resources 
 

Creating 
Opportunities and 
Tackling 
Inequalities 

Internal and 
external 
stakeholders 

 
 

Jonathan Lewis 
Assistant Director - 
Resources, Commissioning 
and Performance 
 
jonathan.lewis@peterborough
.gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
Governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken. 
 

Draft Housing Strategy - 
KEY/04JUN/11 
To approve the draft Housing 
Strategy 2011-2014 for the 
purposes of public 
consultation. 
 

September 
2011 
 

Cabinet 
 

Strong & 
Supportive 
Communities 

Internal and 
External as 
appropriate 
 
 

Richard Kay 
Policy and Strategy Manager 
 
richard.kay@peterborough.go
v.uk 
 

A public report 
will be made 
available from 
the governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
made. 
 

Single Equality Scheme - 
KEY/02SEP/11 
To approve the final scheme 
following consultation 
 

September 
2011 
 

Cabinet 
 

Creating 
Opportunities and 
Tackling 
Inequalities. 

Public consultation 
via stakeholders 
and partnerships. 
 
 

Denise Radley 
Executive Director of Adult 
Social Services 
Tel: 01733 758444 
denise.radley@peterborough.
gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken. 
 

5
0



 

Traffic Signals LED 
Project - award of 
contract - KEY/03SEP/11 
Contract to replace all traffic 
signal head lamps in 
Peterborough with LED as 
LED Heads are more efficient 
brighter, safer and have a 
much longer life. 
 

September 
2011 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Housing, 
Neighbourhoods 
and Planning 
 

Environment 
Capital 

Internal and 
external 
stakeholders as 
appropriate 

 
 

Amy Wardell 
Team Manager - Passenger 
Transport Projects 
Tel: 01733 317481 
amy.wardell@peterborough.g
ov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
Governance 
Team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken. 
 

Street Lighting Policy - 
KEY/04SEP/11 
To agree the street lighting 
policy for PCC. 

 

September 
2011 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Housing, 
Neighbourhoods 
and Planning 
 

Environment 
Capital 

 
 
With internal and 
external 
stakeholders as 
appropriate. 

Mark Speed 
Transport Planning Team 
Manager 
Tel: 317471 
mark.speed@peterborough.g
ov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
Governance 
Team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken. 
 

Consolidation of Property 
Assets - KEY/05SEP/11 

Authority to enter into a lease 

to streamline Council property 

requirements  

 
 

September 
2011 
 

Leader of the 
Council and 
Cabinet Member for 
Growth, Strategic 
Planning, Economic 
Development and 
Business 
Engagement 
 

Sustainable 
Growth 

Internal 
Consultation with 
relevant members 
and officers. 

 
 

Andrew Edwards 
Head of Peterborough 
Delivery Partnership 
Tel: 01733 452303 
andrew.edwards@peterborou
gh.gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
Governance 
Team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken. 
 

5
1



 

Budget and Medium Term 
Financial Strategy - 
KEY/06SEP/11 

To confirm the approach to 

take in delivering the Medium 

Term Financial Strategy 

 
 

September 
2011 
 

Cabinet 
 

Sustainable 
Growth 

Relevant internal 
departments and 
Cabinet 

 
 

Steven Pilsworth 
Head of Strategic Finance 
Tel: 01733 384564 
Steven.Pilsworth@peterborou
gh.gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
Governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken. 
 

 
 

OCTOBER 
 

KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED 

DATE OF 
DECISION 

DECISION MAKER RELEVANT  
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS 

REPORTS 

Manor Drive Managed 
Service –  Procurement 
through the Services 
Competitive Dialogue 
Process - KEY/01SEP/11 
To identify the preferred 
bidder (the Council's partner) 
for Manor Drive Managed 
Service. 
 

October 
2011 
 

Deputy Leader and 
Cabinet Member for 
Culture, Recreation 
and Strategic 
Commissioning, 
Cabinet Member for 
Resources 
 

Sustainable 
Growth 

Internal 
departments, 
Unions, Staff 

 
 

Margaret Welton 
Principal Lawyer (Manor 
Drive) 
Tel: 01733 452226 
margaret.welton@peterborou
gh.gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken 
 

NOVEMBER 
There are currently no Key Decisions Scheduled for November. 
 

5
2



 

Peterborough’s Transport 
Partnership Policy for 
pupils aged 4-16 years - 
KEY/01NOV/11 
To approve the new for 
September 2012. 

 

November 
2011 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Education, Skills 
and University 
 

Creating 
Opportunities and 
Tackling 
Inequalities 

Internal and public 
consultation 

 
 

Rowena Sampson 
Transport Officer 
 
rowena.sampson@peterboro
ugh.gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
Governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken. 
 

DECEMBER 
There are currently no Key Decisions scheduled for December. 
 

5
3



 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S DEPARTMENT  Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, PE1 1HG 

Communications 
Strategic Growth and Development Services 
Legal and Democratic Services 
Policy and Research 
Economic and Community Regeneration 
HR Business Relations, Training & Development, Occupational Health & Reward & Policy 

 
STRATEGIC RESOURCES DEPARTMENT  Director's Office at Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, PE1 1HG 

Finance 

Internal Audit  

Information Communications Technology (ICT) 

Business Transformation 

Strategic Improvement 

Strategic Property  

Waste 

Customer Services 

Business Support 

Shared Transactional Services 

Cultural Trust Client 

 
CHILDRENS’ SERVICES DEPARTMENT  Bayard Place, Broadway, PE1 1FB 

Safeguarding, Family & Communities 

Education & Resources 

Children’s Community Health 

 

5
4



 
 
OPERATIONS DEPARTMENT  Bridge House, Town Bridge, PE1 1HB 

 

Planning Transport & Engineering (Development Management, Construction & Compliance, Infrastructure Planning & Delivery, Network Management)   

Commercial Operations (Resilience, Strategic Parking and Commercial CCTV, City Centre, Markets & Commercial Trading, Passenger Transport)  

Neighbourhoods (Strategic Regulatory Services, Safer Peterborough, Strategic Housing, Cohesion, Social Inclusion) 

Operations Business Support (Finance)  

Planning Transport & Engineering (Development Management, Construction & Compliance, Infrastructure Planning & Delivery, Network Management)   

 

5
5



5
6

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



Last Updated: 31 August 2011  
 

ENVIRONMENT CAPITAL SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
WORK PROGRAMME 2011/12 

 

Meeting Date 

 

Item Progress 

Norwood Lane Caravan Park – Action plan update 

To scrutinise the impact of the Action Plan on the Norwood Lane and Paston 
Travellers Site. 

Contact Officer:  Leonie McCarthy 

Report noted. 9 June 2011 

Draft Report 24 May 

Final Report 31 May 

 
Review of 2010/11 and Future Work Programme 
 
To review the work undertaken during 2010/11 and to consider the future 
work programme of the Committee 
 
Contact Officer: Paulina Ford 

Items identified for the 2011/2012 work programme. 

 

Overview of Environment Capital Programmes/Projects  

To receive an update on the Environment Capital Programmes and Projects 
currently in place. 

Contact Officer: Teresa Wood 

 

Home of Environment Capital Initiative – Progress Report 

To scrutinise the progress of the Home of Environment Capital Initiative 

Contact Officer:  Teresa Wood / Trevor Gibson 

 

 

14 July 2011 

Draft Report 28 June 

Final Report 5 July 

 

 

Members Waste And Recycling Task And Finish Group 

To consider the disbandment of the Members Waste and Recycling Task 
and Finish Group. 

Contact Officer: Margaret Welton 

 

Recommendation to disband the Members Waste and 
Recycling Task and Finish Group 

 

5
7



Last Updated: 31 August 2011  
 

Meeting Date 

 

Item Progress 

Biodiversity Strategy – Progress Report 2010 - 2011 

To scrutinize the progress of the Biodiversity Strategy adopted at Full 
Council in October 2010 and make any necessary recommendations. 

Contact Officer:  James Fisher, Wildlife Officer 

 8 September 2011  

Draft Report 23 Aug 

Final Report 30 Aug 

Environment Capital Performance Update 

To receive and scrutinise an update on the environmental progress to date as 
detailed by Forum for the Future and make any recommendations. 

Contact Officer:  Trevor Gibson 

 

 

Conserving Natural Resources Theme  

Energy Supply Company (ESCO) 

To scrutinise the newly formed Energy Supply Company (ESCO) and make 
any recommendations. 

Contact Officer:  John Harrison 

 

Energy from Waste 

To scrutinise the progress of the council’s Waste 2020 programme and make 
any recommendations. 

Contact Officer: Richard Pearn 

 

Council Policy on Renewable Energy 

To scrutinise the overview of the draft policy for renewable energy in council 
buildings/estate and to make any recommendations. 

Contact Officer: Trevor Gibson 

 

3 November 2011 
 

Draft Report 18 Oct 

Final Report 25 Oct 

Trees and Woodlands Strategy 

To Scrutinise the results form the recent consultation and detail on the next 
steps of the process and make any recommendations. 

Contact Officer:  Darren Sharpe 

 

5
8



Last Updated: 31 August 2011  
 

Meeting Date 

 

Item Progress 

 

5 January 2012 

(Joint Meeting of the 
Scrutiny 
Committees and 
Commissions) 

Budget 2011/12 and Medium Term Financial Plan to 2015/16 

To scrutinise the Executive’s proposals for the Budget 2011/12 and Medium 
Term Financial Plan. 

Contact Officer:  John Harrison/Steven Pilsworth 

 

 

Environmental Enforcement Performance 

To provide an update on enforcement performance. 

Contact Officer:  Peter Gell/Adrian Chapman 

Agreed at meeting held on 10 March 2011 

Peterborough Model with demonstration 

To scrutinise the progress on the Peterborough Model to date.  Live 
demonstration of the Model to be given at the meeting. 

Contact Officer:  Trevor Gibson 

 

19 January 2012 

Draft Report 3 Jan 

Final Report 10 Jan 

 

How sustainability fits in with the Councils Capital Asset Policy and 
Green Leasing 
 
To scrutinise how sustainability fits in with the Councils Capital Asset Policy 
and Green Leasing and make any recommendations 
 

Contact Officer: – Brian Davies, Principal Estates Surveyor 

 

 

22 March 2012 

 

Draft Report 6 March 

Local Transport Plan Capital Programme of Works 

To consider the draft Capital Programme of Works prior to its consideration by 
the Executive. 

Contact Officer:  Michael Stephenson 

Annual report  

 

5
9



Last Updated: 31 August 2011  
 

Meeting Date 

 

Item Progress 

Progress Report on the Carbon Reduction Commitment Energy Efficiency 
Scheme and Carbon Management Action Plan 

To receive an annual report on our progress under the Carbon Reduction 
Commitment Energy Efficiency Scheme and Carbon Management Action 
Plan. 

Contact Officer:  Charlotte Palmer 

Agreed at meeting held on 10 March 2011 

Climate Change Strategy Refresh 

To scrutinise and comment on the draft policy as part of the 
consultation/approvals process and make any recommendations. 

Contact Officer: Jenna Hiley 

 

Final Report 13 March 

 

 

Energy Policy 

To scrutinise and comment on the first Energy Policy as part of the consultation 
process and make any recommendations. 

Contact Officer: Alice Mitchell 

 

 

TO BE PROGRAMMED 
 

Item Comments 

Parking on Grass Verges 

To consider approach to parking on grass verges across the City. 

Contact Officer: Paul Phillipson 

Suggested at Joint Meeting on 28 February 2010. 

Items identified at 9 June Meeting not already included in the work programme: 

• Six monthly monitoring reports on recommendations made by the Committee. 
 

 

 

6
0


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Meeting Held on 14 July 2011
	5 Biodiversity Strategy - Progress Report 2010/2011
	6 Environment Capital Performance Update
	7 Forward Plan of Key Decisions
	110908 - Forward Plan - September to December 2011 Appendix1

	8 Work Programme

